NOTICE OF MEETING
SHEBOYGAN COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
March 12, 2024 9:00 A.M.
Sheboygan County Transportation Department
W5741 County Road J
Plymouth, WI 53073

Conference Room

*AGENDA*

Call to Order

Certification of Compliance with Open Meeting Law

Citizen Input and Comments

Approval of Minutes: Transportation Committee Meeting — February 5, 2024
Review and Approve Vouchers

Approval of Members to Attend Meetings or Functions

Correspondence

Airport/Highway

Airport Activities and Updates (This is a summary of key activities. No action will be taken
by the Transportation Committee resulting from this conversation, unless it is a specific
item on the agenda.)

Consideration of Purchase of Commercial Hangar - Contemplated Closed Session: It
is contemplated that a motion will be made to consider this agenda item in closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85 (1)(e) which states that a closed session may be
held for the following purpose: Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business,
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. The Committee
will reconvene in OPEN SESSION immediately after the closed session is concluded to
vote on matters discussed in closed session requiring decision if any action is deemed
necessary and to conclude work on any other items listed in this meeting notice.

Open Session

Consideration of Resolution No. __ (2023-24) Re: Purchase of Commercial Hangars
Consideration of Sheboygan County Resolution No.13 (2023-24) Re: Amending
Chapters 61, 62, 63, 64 and 65 related to Airport Minimum Standards, Safety and the
Airport Advisory Committee, and Naming of Sheboygan County Memorial International
Airport

Consideration of Sheboygan County Ordinance No. __ (2023-24) Establishing Speed
Zone on: County Road “II” (Town of Sherman)

Consideration of Sheboygan County Ordinance No. _ (2023-24) Establishing Speed
Zone on: County Road “J” (Town of Rhine)

Consideration of Hiring Above Midpoint

Consideration of One (1) Employee to Attend the University of Wisconsin Pesticide
Applicator Training and Wisconsin Department of Agriculture Certification Testing in April
2024

Page | 1
Posted on March 11, 2024 8:45 a.m.



e Highway Activities and Updates (This is a summary of key activities. No action will be
taken by the Transportation Committee resulting from this conversation, unless it is a
specific item on the agenda.)

Next Scheduled Meeting: Monday, April 1, 2024

Prepared by:
Amy Wieland 920-459-3822 Thomas Wegner
Recording Secretary Committee Chairperson

NOTE: Persons with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate are asked to notify the Transportation Department Office
at 920-459-3822 prior to the meeting so that accommodations may be arranged.

A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or of any of its committees may be present at this meeting to listen,
observe, and participate. If a majority of any such body is present, their presence constitutes a “meeting” under the Open Meeting law
as interpreted in State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no
action at this meeting.

Page | 2
Posted on March 11, 2024 8:45 a.m.



SHEBOYGAN COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MINUTES

Sheboygan County Transportation Department
W5741 County Road J
Plymouth, W1 53073

February 5, 2024 Called to Order: 9:00 A.M. Adjourned: 10:34 A.M.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Thomas Wegner, Al Bosman, Jon Kuhlow, Roger Te Stroete, and Jackie
Veldman

ALSO PRESENT in person: Bryan Olson, Emily Stewart, Vernon Koch, Steve Hatton, Crystal
Fieber, Jeremy Fetterer, Alayne Krause, John Kelchen, Jay
VanderWeele, Steve Hoersch, Greg Schnell, Amanda Mann,
Barbra Klug and Amy Wieland

Chairman Wegner called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

Chairman Wegner certified compliance with the open meeting law. The notice was posted at 3:30
p.m. on February 2, 2024.

Supervisor Kuhlow made a motion and Supervisor Te Stroete seconded the motion to approve
the minutes from January 8, 2024 after a correction. Motion carried.

Supervisor Bosman made a motion and Supervisor Te Stroete seconded the motion to approve
the vouchers. Motion carried.

Supervisor Bosman made a motion and Supervisor Veldman seconded the motion to approve
Supervisor Te Stroete’s attendance at the Executive Committee meeting and for Supervisor
Wegner’s attendance at the Wisconsin Highway Conference and Legislative Exchange. Motion
carried.

Business Manager Emily Stewart updated the committee on current activities at the airport.

Supervisor Te Stroete made a motion and Supervisor Bosman seconded the motion to go into
CLOSED SESSION at 9:14 a.m. pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85 (1)(e) to the Potential Purchase
of Commercial Hangar. (Upon call of the roll, Supervisors: Thomas Wegner (Aye), Al Bosman
(Aye), Jon Kuhlow (Aye), Roger Te Stroete (Aye), and Jackie Veldman (Aye).) Motion carried.

Supervisor Bosman made a motion and Supervisor Veldman seconded the motion to go into
OPEN SESSION at 9:54 a.m. (Upon call of the roll, Supervisors: Thomas Wegner (Aye), Al
Bosman (Aye), Jon Kuhlow (Aye), Roger Te Stroete (Aye), and Jackie Veldman (Aye).) Motion
carried.

Supervisor Veldman made a motion and Supervisor Bosman seconded the motion to approve
the Transportation Department Lake Breeze Aviation Policy Exceptions. Motion carried.

Supervisor Kuhlow made a motion and Supervisor Te Stroete seconded the motion to approve
Sheboygan County Res. No._  (2023-24) Re: Approving Municipal Access, Storm Sewer,
Lighting, Camera & Safety Equipment Easement with Village of Elkhart Lake. Motion carried.



Supervisor Bosman made a motion and Supervisor Kuhlow seconded the motion to approve
Hiring Above Midpoint. Motion carried.

Supervisor Te Stroete made a motion and Supervisor Veldman seconded the motion to approve
2023 Budget Adjustments — Highway Division. Motion carried.

Supervisor Bosman made a motion and Supervisor Kuhlow seconded the motion to approve
Sheboygan County Resolution No. __ (2023/24) Re: Purchase of Approximately 30 Acres of
Northeasterly of State Highway 42 and South of Garton Road (Parcel No. 59014-185537).
Motion carried.

Supervisor Veldman made a motion and Supervisor Te Stroete seconded the motion to approve
and Equity Adjustment. Motion carried.

Olson updated the committee on current activities for the Highway Department.
The next Transportation Committee meeting will be on Tuesday, March 12, 2024 at 9:00 a.m.

Motion by Supervisor Bosman and seconded by Supervisor Veldman to adjourn at 10:34 a.m.
Motion carried.

Amy Wieland Al Bosman
Recording Secretary Committee Secretary



LAKE BREEZE
AVIATION

Fuel Transactions by Day of Week
30

25
20
15

10

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

/\

Cost of Fuel Delivered Gallons Sold by Fuel Type
$4.50 2,057
$4.30 :
$4.10
$3.90
$3.70
$3.50
D330 e — L ———
$3.10
$2.90

= 100LL
= JetA

2/1 217 2/13 2/19 2/25

o ot/ e—7100LL

Non-fuel Revenue Share by Type

Ramp Parking
%

2
“‘ fter Hours Call-out

Lavatory
1%

Hangar Rental
9%

u After Hours Call-out

. . Customs
Line Service Fee 16% Customs
4% °
GPU
Handling Fee
= Hangar Rental
= | avatory
GPU m Line Service Fee
4% ® Ramp Parking

Handling Fee
51%

lakebreezeaviation.com
920.459.6413 WISCONSIN



03N LN AW~

AR B WL W W LW WWL L WERNDNDNDNDDNDNDDNDNDND — o e e e e e
ND— OOV WND—RL, OOV WNDER,OOVOIONWUN A WND—OO

B
B w

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. (2023/24)

Re: Purchase of Commercial Hangars (Part of Parcel No. 59026-384630)

WHEREAS, the Transportation Committee has evaluated the operational needs of the
Sheboygan County Memorial (International) Airport (the “Airport”); and

WHEREAS, as part of such evaluation, the Committee has identified the growing need for
additional hangar space for aircraft storage, both for transient aircraft and to provide storage
opportunities for existing Airport tenants; and

WHEREAS, the County Board has determined that acquiring the hangars will best serve the
public interest as well as future needs of County airport operations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the WB-15 Commercial Offer to Purchase dated
February 5, 2024 (the “Offer”), for the hangars identified as part of parcel no. 59026-384630, on file
in the County Clerk’s Office and approved by Seller is hereby approved.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the County Board Chair and County
Clerk are authorized and directed to execute the Offer, the documents related to closing on the
Offer, and such other documents as reasonably necessary to complete the transaction contemplated
herein.

Respectfully submitted this 19t day of March, 2024.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

Thomas Wegner, Chairperson Roger Te Stroete, Vice-Chairperson
Al Bosman, Secretary Jacqueline Veldman
Jon Kuhlow

Opposed to Introduction:

R:\CLIENT\08299\00002\00228043.D0C March 11, 2024, draft



0 N Nk~ W~

A A DD DB WWLWLW W LW WWWLWWERNDNDDNDNDNDNDNDNDNDN = = = =
A WD =) OO0 INWN K WNRPROOUIANWM P WND—R,OOVUIO NI WD~ OO

45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. (2023/24)

Re: Amending Chapters 61, 62, 63, 64 and 65 related to Airport Minimum
Standards, Safety and the Airport Advisory Committee, and Naming of
Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport

WHEREAS, the Sheboygan County Memorial Airport began operating in 1960 in the Town of
Sheboygan Falls; and

WHEREAS, over the years the airport has grown the services offered to pilots, passengers,
corporate stakeholders and citizens of the Sheboygan County community including the addition of a
U.S. Customs facility under the User Fee Agreement Program, pursuant to Title 19, United States Code,
Section 586, which allows for U.S. Customs and Border Protection processing of aircraft, passengers
and cargo entering the United States; and

WHEREAS, in recognition of the addition of the U.S. Customs facility and services at the Airport,
the Transportation Committee recommends adding “international” to the name of the Sheboygan
County Memorial Airport; and

WHEREAS, as the needs and services at the Airport have changed, county staff has reviewed
Chapters 61 through 64 of the Sheboygan County Code relating to minimum standards and safety and
Chapter 65 related to the Airport Advisory Committee, and the Transportation Committee recommends
approval of the revisions to Chapters 61 through 65 of the County Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, the County Board of Supervisors of the County of Sheboygan does ordain
as follows:

Section 1. Amending Chapters 61, 62, 63, 64 and 65. Chapters 61, 62, 63, 64 and
65 of the Sheboygan County Code of Ordinances are hereby amended as attached hereto
(deletions indicated by strikeouts; additions by underline).

Section 2. Changing Name of Airport. Sheboygan County Memorial Airport shall
hereafter be called the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport.

Section 3. Effective Date. The herein Ordinance shall take effect upon enactment.

Respectfully submitted this 16th day of January, 2024.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

Thomas Wegner, Chairperson Roger Te Stroete, Vice-Chairperson
Al Bosman, Secretary Jacqueline Veldman
Jon Kuhlow



53
54
55
56
57

58
59

60

61
62

Opposed to Introduction:

Countersigned by:

Vernon Koch, Chairperson

R:\CLIENT\08299\00008\00217094.DOCX

January 5, 2024, draft



61.01
61.02
61.03
61.04
61.05
61.06
61.07
61.08
61.09
61.10

61.01

61.02

CHAPTER 61
SHEBOYGAN COUNTY MEMORIAL INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

OPERATION OF AIRPORT

DEFINITION OF WORDS AND PHRASES
AIRPORT OPERATION POLICIES
ZONING OF LAND USES

UTILITIES

ENTRANCES

SPECIAL VARIANCE

ENFORCEMENT

PENALTY

MULTIPLE OWNERSHIP

OPERATION OF AIRPORT. The Transportation Committee shall have supervision over
equipment, maintenance, and operation of the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport
as follows:

(1) The Committee shall adopt regulations and establish fees or charges for the use of said
Airport not inconsistent with this Ordinance.

{3)(2) The Committee shall prepare and submit an annual report to the County Board. Such
report shall include information on Aircraft traffic, Airport expenditures and revenues, and
comparative figures on past, present, and future traffic and activity in addition to other
information that the Committee may deem pertinent to the report.

4)(3) The Committee shall submit to the County Board an annual budget setting forth
anticipated revenues and expenditures including capital improvements and the amount
recommended to be raised by taxation for Airport purposes.

5)(4) The Committee shall make studies and conduct surveys from time to time to assist it in
improving the operation of the Airport and for planning purposes.

{8)(5) The Committee shall, in cooperation with the appropriate County Department, establish
an Airport accounting system of sufficient detail to enable the Committee to accurately
establish rates and charges for lease purposes and to eliminate possible inefficient
operation and maintenance practices.

{A(6) The Committee shall prepare and adopt uniform leases and agreements for the various
types of Airport activities and land uses authorized in this Ordinance.

{9(7) The Committee shall cooperate with and receive the cooperation of County Departments
providing services or assistance to the Airport.

(8) The Committee shall have such additional authority as delegated by the County Board in
Chapter 2 of the County Code.

DEFINITION OF WORDS AND PHRASES. As used in this Ordinance, unless the context
otherwise requires:

(1) "Airport" means the Sheboygan County Memorial_International Airport.

(2) "Apron" means that paved area designed and used solely for the temporary parking and
servicing of aircraft.




61.03

61.04

(3) "Concession" means any non-aeronautical facility or service required for the
convenience of the public using the Airport.

(4) "Fixed-Base Operator" means any person, firm, corporation, or association carrying
persons or property for hire or furnishing aeronautical services, supplies, or instruction
and conducting such business from a particular municipal airport.

(5) "Hangar" means any building designed and used for the aeronautical purposes providing
space for aircraft and service activities.

(6) "Lessor" means owner as defined in Subsection (2) of this Section.

(7) "Multiple T-Hangar" means a rectangular-shaped building capable of housing two (2) or
more aircraft and which provides individual door openings for each aircraft.

(8) "Owner" means Sheboygan County.

(9) "Tie-down" means an area designed and used for the parking and tying down and
storage of aircraft.

(10) "Public thoroughfare" means all areas in the administration area of the Airport designed
and used for the passage of people in vehicles or on foot.

(11) "Shop" means a building capable of housing one (1) or more aircraft while such aircraft
are being repaired.

(12) "Taxiway" means a paved area designated solely for the taxiing of aircraft except apron
areas.
(13) "Tie-down" means an area designed and used for the parking and tying down and

storage of aircraft.

(14) "Vehicle" means every device in, upon, or by which any person or property is or may be
transported or drawn upon a public highway.

(15) “Zoning Map” means the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport Map A, which
is on file in the Airport Superintendent’s office and County Clerk’s office, made a part of
this ordinance by reference.

AIRPORT OPERATION POLICIES. The Committee, in carrying out its duties and
responsibilities, shall adhere to the following owner policies:

(1) The owner may engage in aviation activities as set forth in Chapter 64 of the County
Code.
(2) The owner shall encourage the development of the Airport in those areas where

substantial building costs are incurred by lessees, by approving long-term leases which
provide for the re-examination and readjustment of rates and charges at specified periods
of time during the term of the lease.

3) Lessees shall be selected on the basis of tenant's desirability and not by bid basis. In
determining the use of space in the terminal building, first consideration should be given
to public convenience and necessity.

(4) Buildings to be constructed by lessees shall be of metal or masonry or a combination
thereof, except those referred to in Subsection 61.04(4), below, and the building plans
and location shall be approved in writing by the Committee-Airport Superintendent prior to
construction.

ZONING OF LAND USES. The designated land areas of the Map-Airport are hereby zoned in
accordance W|th the current verS|on of theArrperH:ayeuPPlan%Al:P—)ﬂappreved%rewsed—the




- Zoning Map. All activities, operations, functions, and
land uses shall conform to the limitations set forth in the following Subsections:

(1) Terminal Area. This area shall be the public use area and shall be developed by the
owner. The terminal building and such other buildings needed for the public shall be
located in this area.

(2) Utility and Service Area. This area shall be the location for Airport utility and service
buildings for housing maintenance equipment and fire and crash equipment.

(3) Commercial Aviation Areas.

(a) Allowable Activities. All commercial aviation business normally conducted by
fixed-base operators shall be located in this area. Sale and maintenance of
aircraft, engines, parts, and accessories, including the sale of gasoline and oil,
aircraft storage, flight training, aircraft rentals, and charter services are allowable
activities and such concessions as granted by lease or agreement.

(b) Lot Sizes. All lots shall have a minimum of thirty-three thousand (33,000) square
feet.

(c) Set-backs.
OrdinanceFive (5) feet from each lot line.

(d) Building Heights. All buildings shall not exceed a maximum height of forty (40)
feet above the grade level.

(e) Building Sizes. The initial buildings constructed by the lessee shall have a
minimum floor area of at least seven thousand five hundred (7,500) square feet.

(4) Industrial Hangar Area.

(a) Allowable Activities. All non-commercial hangars, excluding multiple T-hangars,
shall be located in this area, and the exclusive use of this area shall be aircraft
housing. Aircraft maintenance and repair may be performed by the owner or
regular full-time employees of the owner. In the case of a multiple-owner hangar,
rules apply to each as if they were a single owner, except that a cooperative
agreement between owners for hangar administration, aircraft movement, and
aircraft repairs and maintenance is permitted. No flammable liquids except fuel
required for heating the building and those required for aircraft maintenance shall
be stored above or below the ground, nor shall aviation fuels be dispensed in this
area other than by dispensing equipment operating from the commercial aviation
areas; provided, however, that aviation fuel may be dispensed only into aircraft
owned, leased, or controlled by the owner or lessee of the Industrial Hangar if
such owner or lessee has installed aviation fuel storage tanks in the Airport fuel
farm. The Committee shall also have the authority to establish a policy waiving
the above limitations on a temporary basis, but such waiver and temporary basis
shall not exceed three (3) full calendar days for transient aircraft or emergency
use situations and shall not exceed ninety (90) days for locally-based aircraft
requiring storage facilities not presently available at the fixed base operator's
facility.

(b)

reference.Zoning Map.

(c) Set-Backs.
OrdinanceFive (5) feet from each lot line.




®)

(6)

()

(8)

(d) Building Heights. All buildings shall not exceed a maximum height of 40' above
the grade level.

(e) Building Sizes. Any building constructed in this area shall have a minimum floor
space of 2,500 square feet and a minimum clear door opening of 45' wide and
14' feet high.

Multiple T-Hangar Area.

(a) Allowable Activities. This area shall be restricted to the location of multiple unit
T-Hangars for the storage of aircraft. Only aircraft owners or their regular
full-time employees may perform maintenance or repairs on their aircraft in this
area. No flammable liquids shall be stored above or below the ground. Aircraft
shall not be parked in the manner which interferes with movement of aircraft in
this area.

(b) Lot Sizes. All lots shall be a minimum width of 52' feet and length shall be
determined by the number of units constructed.

(c) Set-backs.
OrdinanceFive (5) feet from each lot line.

(d) Building Sizes. All buildings shall have sufficient floor space to house eight (8)
aircraft and all old buildings reconstructed in this area shall have door openings
of at least 39'6" and a minimum clear height of 10'6", and all new buildings
constructed shall have a minimum door opening of 39'6" wide and a minimum
clear height of 11'6".

Tie-Down Area. Those areas shall be used for the permanent tie-down of aircraft based
on the Airport or those transient aircraft remaining longer than four (4) hours. Temporary
tie-down areas may be designated by the-CemmitteeAirport Superintendent.

Apron Areas. These public areas shall be used for unloading or loading passengers,
refueling aircraft, and the parking of aircraft for periods less than four (4) hours. All
single-engine aircraft parked on the apron temporarily shall be secured by "tie-downs."

Individual Hangar Area.
(a) Allowable Activities.

1. The exclusive use of this area shall be for storage of the—type—of
airworthy aircraft whese—which use does not conflict with commercial
services as defined under Sheboygan County Ordinance-Code Chapter
64.

2. A hangar owner may lease or rent part of the hangar space to another
but only for airworthy aircraft storage. A hangar owner wishing to lease
or rent the entire hangar may do so with advance approval of and subject
to conditions established by the Transportation Committee.

3. Aircraft maintenance and repair may be performed only by the aircraft
owner. No flammable liquids shall be stored above or below the ground
nor shall aviation gasoline be dispensed in this area.

4. Aircraft shall not be parked in a manner which interferes with movement
of aircraft within this area.

(b) Lot Sizes. All lot sizes shall be as designated on Detail-Map-A-dated-November
1,-2004,to-Map-A-of-this-Ordinance-as follows:

1. Lots 1a through 6a: 60' wide by 60' deep.



9)

(c)

(d)

2. Lots 1 through 30: 60' wide by 70' deep.

3. Lot 31: 80' wide by 70' deep.
4. Lots 232 through G240: 80" wide by 80' deep.
5. Requests for modifications to lot sizes from the specifications defined

above shall be reviewed by the Transportation Committee.

Setbacks. All-setback-lines—shall-be-as-designated-on-Detail- Map-A-dated

; ; i j All setbacks as listed on Zoning

Map.

Building Heights. All buildings shall not exceed a maximum height of 40' above
the grade level. No external protrusions, braces, or supports shall exceed the
height of the roof.

Building Sizes. Any hangar building constructed in this area shall comply with
the sizes defined below:

1. Lots 1a through 6a: 42' wide by 40' deep minimum hangar size; 50' by
40' deep maximum hangar size.

2. Lots 1 through 6: 42' wide by 42' deep minimum hangar size; 42' wide
by 45' deep maximum hangar size.

3. Lots 7 through 31; Lots F124 through F231; and Lots G131 through
G140: 42' feet wide by 42' deep minimum hangar size; 50' wide by 50'
deep maximum hangar size.

4, Lots G232 through G240: 60' wide by 60' deep minimum hangar size;
70" wide by 70' deep maximum hangar size.

5. Requests for hangar sizes which do not conform to specifications defined
above shall be reviewed by the Transportation Committee.

Fuel Farm Area.

(@)

(b)

Allowable Activities. This area is reserved for the storage of fuel used in aircraft
owned by Airport tenants [as permitted by Section 61.04(4)(a)] or fuel dispensed
by the fixed-base operator.

Written Agreement. A written agreement between a fuel farm tenant, other than
a fixed-base operator, and the Transportation Committee shall contain but shall
not be limited to the following provisions:

1. At no time shall the fuel farm tenant share, sublease, or in any other
manner provide fuel or fueling facilities to any other tenant or any other
aircraft except those aircraft owned or leased for the exclusive use of the
tenant(s) designated in this agreement.

2. Tenant shall install and maintain all fuel facilities within the fuel farm in
accordance with plans and specifications approved in writing by the
Transportation Committee.

3. Tenant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations
governing the installation, operation, and maintenance of all fueling
facilities, equipment, and dispensing trucks.



4. Dispensing trucks, bulk fuel trucks, emergency vehicles, and other
vehicles approved by the Transportation Committee or Airport
Superintendent shall be the only vehicles permitted within the fuel farm.

5. The tenant shall pay fuel flowage charges which are similar to those at
the highest rate being paid by the fixed-base operator for similar fuel
dispensed at the Airport.

6. The fuel farm tenant shall submit to the Transportation Committee a
written plan which sets forth the extent of operations to include: fuel
grades; estimated annual volume; experience and training of
fuel-handling personnel; type, size, and condition of all fueling facilities
and equipment to be used; and provisions for the security and safety of
the facility.

A. The plan which shall be complied with once approved and shall
be updated as required by the Transportation Committee.

B. Acceptable minimum requirements for the items defined in
Subsection (9)(b)6. are to be obtained from Federal Aviation
Administration Advisory Circular (FAA AC) 150/5230-4, "Aircraft
Fuel Storage, Handling, and Dispensing on Airports," a copy of
which is on file in the Office of the County Clerk and the Airport
Superintendent's Office.

7. The following minimum standards shall be in addition to the above:

A. Fuel tanks allowed in fuel farm area shall have a minimum
capacity of ten thousand (10,000) gallons.

B. Fuel tanker trucks having a one thousand- (1,000-) gallon
minimum but-not exceeding-two-thousand-five-hundred--(2,500-)
gallen—maximum-size-shall be allowed to service the fuel farm

tenant's own aircraft at the Airport.

C. Off-use parking of tenant's fuel tanker trucks shall be permitted
on Airport grounds only in area(s) designated by the
Transportation Committee.

D. Bulk fuel tanker trucks shall have access to fuel farm area only.
E. Fuel farm tenant aircraft fueling locations:
(i) Industrial tenants who own a fuel tank located in the fuel

farm shall fuel his or her own aircraft on his or her own
industrial lot site in an area that meets the fueling
requirements set forth in FAA AC 150/5230-4.

(i) Commercial tenants who own a fuel tank located in the
fuel farm shall fuel his or her own aircraft in a "fueling
area" designated by the Transportation Committee on
the Airport grounds.

(iii) Private tenants who own a fuel tank located in the fuel
farm shall fuel his or her own aircraft in a "fueling area"
designated by the Transportation Committee on the
Airport grounds.

(c) State Requirements. Placement of fuel tanks at the Airport shall comply with all
Wisconsin—Administrative—Code—requirements of the Wisconsin Commercial
Building Code presently in effect (to-wit: Ind. 8.12, 8.20, 8.21, 8.22, 8.23, and




61.05

8.40) and any acts amendatory or supplementary thereto which may hereafter be
adopted by the state, all of which are made a part hereof by reference.

(d) Insurance. Fuel farm tenants shall provide and keep in effect general liability
insurance coverage for the fuel farm operations having limits of not less than One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) in which the County in included as an "Additional
Insured/Lessor" and shall annually supply to the County a Certificate of
Insurance showing compliance with this requirement.

(10)  Architectural and Aesthetic Control. All buildings, landscaping, parking areas, and
exterior signage shall be substantially consistent with and compatible with existing
improvements at the Airport. Designs, specifications, colors, materials, and dimensions
shall be submitted to the Airport Superintendent for review for compliance with this
Ordinance. The determination of the Airport Superintendent may be reviewed by the
Transportation Committee upon request.

UTILITIES. All users of water from the Airport well and sewage facilities shall provide their own
pipes to their lot lines and shall pay a connection fee and a yearly service fee to the owner. The
owner shall provide the necessary pipe lines from the utility location to the lessee's lot line. All
electrical and telephone utilities shall be arranged for and paid by the lessee, and the location of
all lines and poles shall first require approval by the Committee.

61.087

61.098

6 SPECIAL VARIANCE. The Committee shall be authorized to issue special building permits for

special purpose hangars in compliance with Federal Aviation Administration grant assurances on
the following conditions:

(1) The hangar shall be for the sole purpose of storing non-commercial aircraft of a special
category such as antique aircraft, home-built aircraft, or experimental aircraft.

(2) The aircraft shall be of such nature so that its size makes storage in the sizes of buildings
presently covered hereinabove impractical.

(3) The hangar be of the same construction as specified hereinabove.

(4) The building separations required in the individual hangar area and the Wisconsin
Industrial-Commission—Commercial Building Code or any local building codes be
complied with.

(5) The use of the building be restricted to the storage of the special aircraft involved unless
said special aircraft is no longer housed at the Sheboygan County Memorial International
Airport at which time use of said building shall be for such purposes as permitted in the
sole discretion of the Transportation Committee.

ENFORCEMENT. It shall be the duty of the Airport Superintendent and the Sheboygan County
Sheriff's Department to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

PENALTY. Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall, upon
conviction thereof, forfeit not less than One Dollar ($1.00) nor more than Two Hundred ($200.00)
together with the costs of prosecution and, in default of payment of the forfeiture and costs of
prosecution shall be imprisoned in the County Jail until said forfeiture and costs are paid, but not
exceeding ninety (90) days.

MULTIPLE OWNERSHIP. Any structures at the Airport may be owned by more than one
individual so long as the lease provisions for such structure shall contain a default provision that
provides that a default of one unit of ownership shall be a default of all of the units of ownership
and, unless such default is remedied within thirty (30) days of written notice thereof to all of the
unit owners, all of such owners shall be in default. The lease shall include a limitation on the
number of units of ownership as in the determination of the Committee may be necessary to
maintain the orderly development of the Airport.



History: Ord. 16 (2004/05); Ord. 1 (2012/13); Ord. 1 (2022/23)



62.01
62.02
62.03
62.04
62.05
62.06
62.07

62.01

62.02

62.03

62.04

62.05

CHAPTER 62
REGULATING SHEBOYGAN COUNTY MEMORIAL INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
VEHICULAR TRAFFIC

DEFINITION OF WORDS AND PHRASES

OPERATION OF VEHICLES ON RUNWAYS, TAXIWAYS, AND RAMPS
SPEED OF VEHICLES

PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC/TRESPASSING

OVERNIGHT PARKING

ENFORCEMENT

PENALTIES

DEFINITION OF WORDS AND PHRASES. As used herein, the following words or terms shall
have the meaning as indicated:

(1) "Pedestrian." Any person afoot.

(2) "Vehicle." Every device in, upon, or by which any person or property is or may be
transported or drawn upon a public highway excepting unless specifically included,
vehicles used exclusively upon stationary rails or tracks or any vehicle propelled by the
use of electricity obtained from overhead trolley structures.

(3) "Emergency Equipment." Emergency equipment is defined as ambulances, crash
rescue and fire-fighting apparatus, and such other equipment as the Transportation
Committee may designate as necessary to safeguard the Airport's runways, taxiways,
ramps, buildings, and other common areas.

(4) "Service, Maintenance, and Construction Equipment." Equipment normally operated
at the request and direction of the Airport Superintendent and/or the Federal Aviation
Agency on landing areas, runways, taxiways, and peripheral roads for the servicing,
maintenance, and construction of Airport facilities and services. This definition shall
include equipment owned and operated by a contractor performing work on the Airport
under a contractual agreement with Sheboygan County.

OPERATION OF VEHICLES ON RUNWAYS, TAXIWAYS, AND RAMPS.

(1) No privately-owned vehicle shall enter be driven upon or operated upon any Airport

runway, taxiway, or-ramp-or-tie-down-area-or any area posted by signs prohibiting the
entrance thereon.

(2) The provisions of this Section shall not apply to emergency equipment and/or service,
maintenance, and construction equipment when engaged in performing official duties and
such other vehicles as specifically authorized by the Airport Superintendent.

SPEED OF VEHICLES. No vehicle shall be driven upon any road within the perimeter of the
Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport or upon other airport areas in excess of 15
miles per hour, the speed limit posted at the entrance of the Airport, or within the boundaries
thereof, nor shall the driver of any vehicle fail to adhere to any sign posted to regulate vehicular
traffic on or about the Airport for public safety.

PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC/TRESPASSING. No persons shall be permitted to enter the enclosed or
fenced area of the Airport beyond the administration area unless for the purpose of embarking in
or disembarking from an aircraft, except for employees of the County, State, or federal
government, or contractors engaged in Airport construction or maintenance work, or as otherwise
authorized by the Airport Superintendent.

OVERNIGHT PARKING. No parking shall be permitted on the short-term parking lot during the
period of December 1 through April 1 from midnight to 6:00 a.m. A sign reciting this prohibition
shall be posted at the short-term parking lot.



62.06

62.07

ENFORCEMENT. The Sheboygan County Sheriff's Department is charged with the enforcement
of this Ordinance.

PENALTIES. Any person who shall have violated any of the above Sections may be subject to
one or more of the following:

(1) For violation of Sections 62.02, 62.03, and 62.04 of this Code, a forfeiture of not less than
Twenty-five-One Hundred Dollars ($25:00100.00) nor more than One-Three Hundred
Dollars ($400-00300.00) plus costs of prosecution.

(2) For a violation of Section 62.05 of this Code:

(a) A written notice of a parking violation;

(b) A parking ticket carrying with it a forfeiture of not less than Thirty Dollars ($30.00)
nor more than Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00);_or

(c) Vehicles may be towed away at owner's expense.

History:

Ord. 1 (2012/13)



CHAPTER 63
REGULATING THE HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES AND TREES
AND THE USE OF PROPERTY IN THE VICINITY OF
THE SHEBOYGAN COUNTY MEMORIAL INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

63.01 DEFINITIONS
63.02 ZONES
63.03 HEIGHT ZONES
63.04 USE RESTRICTIONS
63.05 NON-CONFORMING USES
63.06 ADMINISTRATION
63.07 PERMITS
63.08 HAZARD MARKING AND LIGHTING
63.09 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS
63.10 APPEALS AND REVIEW
63.11 PENALTIES
63.01 DEFINITIONS. As used in this Ordinance unless the context otherwise required:

(a) "Airport." The Sheboygan County Memorial_lInternational Airport located in
Sections 10, 15, and 16, Township 15 North, Range 22 East, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin.

(b) "Airport Hazard." Any structure, object of natural growth, or use of land which
obstructs the air space required for the flight of aircraft in landing or taking off at an airport or is
otherwise hazardous to-such-landing-or-taking-off normal aircraft operation.

(c) “Height Limitation Map.” The Sheboygan County Airport Height Limitation Zoning
Map, which is on file in the Airport Superintendent’s office and County Clerk’s office, and made a
part of this ordinance by reference.

(ed) "Non-conforming Use." Any structure, tree, or use of land which does not
conform to a regulation prescribed in this Ordinance or an amendment thereto as of the effective
date of such regulation.

(de) "Person." Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, company, association,
joint stock association, or body politic, and includes any trustee, receiver, assignee, or other
similar representative thereof.

(ef) "Runway." A level portion of an airport having a surface specially developed and
maintained for the landing and take-off of aircraft.

(fa) "Structure." Any object constructed or installed by man.

(gh)  "Tree." Any object of natural growth, except farm crops, which are cut at least
once a year and except shrubs, bushes, or plants which do not grow to a height of more than five
(5) feet.

63.02 ZONES. All zones established by this Section-Chapter are shown on Map-A-entitled
%hebeygan@eemtwmrperpHelght Limitation Zenm& Map " Shebeygan@%mty—%kseeﬂ&n—wm%%

63.03 HEIGHT ZONES. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, no structure shall be

constructed, altered, located, or permitted to remain after such construction, alteration, or location, and no
trees shall be allowed to grow to a height in excess of the height limit indicated on the maps referred to in
Section 63.02 hereof.

63.04 USE RESTRICTIONS.

(a) Activities. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 62-03 63.02 of this Code, no
use may be made of land in any zone in such a manner as to create electrical interference with
radio communication between the Airport and aircraft; or electrical interference with the



Instrument Landing System (ILS); or make it difficult for pilots to distinguish between Airport lights
and others; or result in glare in the eyes of pilots using the Airport; or impair visibility in the
landing, taking off, or maneuvering of aircraft.

(b) Exceptlons The restrlctlons contalned in Section 63 03 shaII not apply to legal

from the nearest Airport boundarv and are Iess than f|ftv (50) feet in height.

63.05 NON-CONFORMING USE.

(a) Not Retroactive. The regulations prescribed in Sections 63.03 and 63.04 of this
Code shall not be construed to require the removal, lowering, or other change or alteration of any
non-conforming use or otherwise interfere with the continuance of any non-conforming use
except as otherwise provided by Section 63.07(b), below.

(b) Changes. Nothing herein contained shall require any change in the construction,
alteration, or intended use of any structure if the construction or alteration of such was begun
prior to the effective date of this Ordinance and if such is diligently pursued.

(c) Removal. This Section shall not interfere with the removal of non-conforming
uses by purchase or the use of eminent domain.

63.06 ADMINISTRATION. It shall be the duty of the Sheboygan County Airport Manager
Superintendent to administer and enforce the regulations prescribed herein. Applications for permits and
variances shall be made to the Sheboygan County Airport Manager—Superintendent upon a form
furnished by said Airport Manager. Applications which are, by this Ordinance, to be decided by the
Sheboygan County Transportation Committee shall be promptly considered and granted or denied by
them. Applications for actions by the Board of Adjustments shall be forthwith transmitted by the
Sheboygan County Airport Manager Superintendent-to the Board for hearing and decision.

63.07 PERMITS.

(a) Future Uses. No structure shall hereafter be constructed, erected, or installed, or
be permitted to remain in any zone created by Section 63.02 of this Code until the owner or the
owner's agent shall have applied in writing for a permit therefor and obtained such permit from
the Sheboygan County Airport ManagerSuperintendent, except strueture&mere4han—1+2—m+le

buﬂdmgerteas set forth in Section 63 04 (b). Sald permlt shaII be posted ina promlnent place on

the premises prior to and during the period of construction, erection, installation, or
establishment. The owner or owner’s agent shall be responsible for obtaining an obstruction
evaluatlon/ airport airspace analysis prior to applvlnq for a permlt from the Alrport Superlntendent

resmenenieetheﬁzeneiewvmeh%%eated Appllcatlon for such permlt shaII |nd|cate the use for
which the permit is desired and shall describe and locate the use with sufficient particularity to
permit the Sheboygan County Airport Manager to determine whether such use would conform to
the regulations herein prescribed. If such determination is in the affirmative, the Sheboygan
County Airport Manager shall issue the permit applied for.

(b) Existing Uses. Before any non-conforming structure or tree may be replaced,
altered, repaired, rebuilt, or replanted, a permit shall be applied for and secured in the manner
prescribed by Paragraph 1 Section 63.07(1) authorizing such change, replacement, or repair. No
such permit shall be granted that would allow the structure or tree to become a greater hazard to
air navigation than it was on the effective date of this Ordinance or than it is when the application
for permit is made.

(c) The Airport Superintendent may order the removal of any trees when there is a
finding that the tree violates the height restriction for the zone for which it is located.

63.08 HAZARD MARKING AND LIGHTING. Any permit or variance granted under Sections
63.07 or 63.10 herein may, if such action is deemed advisable by the Sheboygan County Transportation
Committee to effectuate the purpose of this Ordinance, and if such is reasonable under the



circumstances, be so conditioned as to require the owner of the structure or trees in question to permit
the owner of the Airport, at its own expense, to install, operate, and maintain thereon such markers and
lights as may be necessary to indicate to the flyers the presence of an Airport hazard.

63.09 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS. The Sheboygan County Building;-Zoning,—and-Sanitation

Board of Adjustments, as established in-the-SHEBOYGAN-COUNTY-SANITARY-ORDINANCE pursuant
to-Wis—Stat—§-59.99 Chapter 76 of the Sheboygan County Code, is hereby authorized to administer the

appropriate judicial functions set forth in this Ordinance. The said Board shall be referred to as the Board
of Adjustments in this Ordinance.

63.10 APPEALS AND REVIEW.

(a) Variances. Upon appeal in special cases, the Board of Adjustments may, after
investigation and public hearing, grant such variance from the terms of this Ordinance as

prescnbed in Chapter 76 of the Countv Code MH#@Lb&emmaFyute%pubIMerestANhere

(b) Aggrieved Person. Any person aggrieved or affected by any decision or action of
the Sheboygan County Airport Manager-Superintendent or the Sheboygan County Transportation
Committee, made in their administration of this Ordinance may appeal such decision or action to
the Board of Adjustments.

(c) Procedure. Any appeal taken pursuant to this section shall be in conformity with
the procedure established by-Wis-Stat-§-59.99 Chapter 76 of the Sheboygan County Code, Wis.
Stat. § 59.694.

63.11 PENALTIES. Any person who violates, disobeys, neglects, omits, or refuses to comply

with, or who resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall, upon conviction,
remove the structure or part thereof which violates the terms of this Ordinance, as determined by the
Airport Manger, within ninety (90) days of such conviction.

(a) Upon failure to do so, the Airport Manager—Superintendent may order such
removal. Such removal and/or restoration may be performed by the County, an agent, or by
outside contract, and the cost thereof shall be billed to the owner and be paid within thirty (30)
days and if not so paid shall become a delinquent special charge under provision of Wis. Stat. §
66-60(16)(a)-66.0627 and shall become a lien on the property, collectible as are other taxes.

(b) Such person also shall, upon conviction, forfeit to Sheboygan County not less
than Twenty Dollars ($20.00) nor more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00), plus the costs of
prosecution, for each offense. Each day during which such violation exists shall constitute a
separate offense.

(c) Every violation of this Ordinance is a public nuisance and the creation thereof
may be enjoined and the maintenance thereof may be abated by action at the suit of Sheboygan
County or any aggrieved citizen.

History:



CHAPTER 64
MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR AIRPORT SERVICES

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

MINIMUM STANDARDS ESTABLISHED

AIRCRAFT SALES

AIRFRAME AND POWER PLANT REPAIR FACILITIES
AIRCRAFT RENTAL

FLIGHT TRAINING

AIRCRAFT FUELS AND OIL DISPENSING SERVICE
RADIO, INSTRUMENT, OR PROPELLER REPAIR STATION
AIRCRAFT CHARTER AND AIR TAXI

AIR CARRIERS OR SCHEDULED AIR TAXI
SPECIALIZED COMMERCIAL FLYING SERVICES
MULTIPLE SERVICES

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

LEASE CLAUSES

LEASE PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

FLYING CLUBS

GENERAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS. Minimum requirements for airport aeronautical services at

the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport shall be as set forth herein.

64.02 MINIMUM STANDARDS ESTABLISHED. The following minimum standards for a person

or persons, firm, or corporation based upon and engaging in one or more aeronautical services for hire or
consideration at the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport, Sheboygan Falls, Sheboygan
County, Wisconsin, shall hereafter be in full force and effect, and the lease clauses shall be included in all
leases between the County of Sheboygan and any person or persons, firm, or corporation desiring to be
based upon the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport, Sheboygan Falls, Sheboygan County,
Wisconsin, or engage thereon in any aeronautical service.

64.03 AIRCRAFT SALES.

(a) Statement of Concept. An "Aircraft Sales Operator" is a person or persons, firm,

or corporation engaged in the sale of new or used aircraft through franchise or licensed
dealership or distributorship (either on a retail or wholesale basis) of an aircraft manufacturer or
otherwise and provides such repair, services, and parts as necessary to meet any guarantee or
warranty on new or used aircraft sold by said Operator.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) For new construction, The-the Operator shall lease from County of
Sheboygan an area of not less than 15,000 square feet of ground space to provide for
outside display and storage of aircraft and on which shall be erected a building to provide
at least 2,500 square feet of floor space for aircraft storage and at least 1,000 square feet
of floor space for office, customer lounge, and rest rooms, which shall be properly heated
and lighted;. and-shall-provide-telephone-facilitiesfor-customer-use-The Transportation
Committee may approve the use of existing facilities with less floor space if it finds it is in
the best interest of Airport operations.

The Operator shall provide auto—parking spaces within the leased area to
accommodate at least ten (10) automobiles.

The Operator shall provide a paved walkway within the leased area to
accommodate pedestrian access to the Operator’s office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator's building to the taxiway or the
access to the taxiway that has been or will be provided for the Operator.



64.04

(2) The Operator shall provide necessary and satisfactory arrangements for
repair and servicing of aircraft but only for the duration of any sales guarantee or
warranty period. Servicing facilities may be provided through written agreement with a
repair shop operator at the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport. The
Operator shall provide an adequate inventory of spare parts for the type of new aircraft
for which sales privileges are granted. The Operator who is engaged in the business of
selling new aircraft shall have available or on call at least one (1) single engine
demonstrator.

3) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified.

A. Aircraft Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit, including
passengers, minimum

B. Airport Liability: $3;000,0001,000,000 single limit, premises; plus
$1,000,000 single limit, products/completed operations no sub-limit

(4) The Operator shall have his premises open and services available eight
(8) hours daily, five (5) days a week.

(5) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during the
appropriate business hours trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet
the minimum standards set forth in an efficient manner but never less than one (1)
person having a current, effective commercial pilot certificate with single engine rating
and instructor rating.

The Operator shall make provision for someone to be in-attendance-in-the
officeavailable to provide services at all times during the required operating hours.

AIRFRAME AND POWER PLANT REPAIR FACILITIES.

(a) Statement of Concept. An "Aircraft Engine and Airframe Maintenance and

Repair Operator" is a person or persons, firm, or corporation providing one or a combination of
airframe and power plant repair but with at least one (1) person currently certificated by the
Federal Aviation Administration with ratings appropriate to the work being performed. This
category of aeronautical services shall also include the sale of aircraft parts and accessories, but
such is not an exclusive right.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) For new construction, The-the Operator shall lease from Sheboygan
County an area of not less than 16,000 square feet of ground space on which shall be
erected a building to provide at least 5,000 square feet of floor space for airframe and
power plant repair services including a segregated painting area all of which meet local
and state industrial-commercial code requirements and with at least 1,000 square feet of
floor space for office, customer lounge, and rest rooms, which shall be properly heated
and lighted;. and-shall-previde-telephonefacilitiesfor-eustomeruse-The Transportation
Committee may approve the use of existing facilities with less floor space if it finds it in
the best interest of Airport operations.

The Operator shall provide auto—parking spaces within the leased area to
accommodate at least ten (10) automobiles.

The Operator shall provide a paved walkway within the leased area to
accommodate pedestrian access to the Operator’s office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator’'s building to the taxiway or the
access to the taxiway that has been or will be provided for the Operator.



(2) The Operator shall provide sufficient equipment, supplies, and availability
of parts equivalent to that required for certification by the Federal Aviation Administration
as an approved repair station (FAR 145) or aircraft maintenance repair facility (FAR Part

91).

3) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified:

A. Aircraft Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit, including
passengers, minimum.

B. Hangar Keepers and/or Products Liability: A sum sufficient to
adequately cover the maximum liability exposure based on the intended use of
the premises or value of the equipment to be serviced.

C. Airport Liability: $3;000,0001,000,000 single limit, premises; plus
$1,000,000 single limit, products/completed operations no sub-limit.

(4) The Operator shall have his premises open and services available eight
(8) hours daily, five (5) days each week.

(5) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during the
appropriate business hours trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet
the minimum standards set forth in this category of services in an efficient manner, but
never less than one (1) person currently certificated by the Federal Aviation
Administration with ratings appropriate to the work being performed and who holds an
airframe, power plant, or an aircraft inspector rating, and one (1) other person not
necessarily rated.

The Operator shall make provision for someone to be available to provide
services in-attendance-in-the-office-at all times during the required operating hours.

64.05 AIRCRAFT RENTAL.

(a) Statement of Concept. An "Aircraft Rental Operator" is a person or persons, firm,
or corporation engaged in the rental of aircraft to the public.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) For new construction, The-the Operator shall lease from Sheboygan
County an area of not less than 15,000 square feet of ground space and on which shall
be erected a building to provide at least 2,500 square feet of floor space for aircraft
storage and at least 1,000 square feet of floor space for office, customer lounge, and rest
rooms, which shall be properly heated and lighted;. i iliti
for-customer-use-The Transportation Committee may approve the use of existing facilities
with less floor space if it finds it in the best interest of Airport operations.

The Operator shall provide aute parking spaces within the leased area to
accommodate at least ten (10) automobiles.

The Operator shall provide a paved walkway within the leased area to
accommodate pedestrian access to the Operator’s office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator’'s building to the taxiway or the
access to the taxiway that has been or will be provided for the Operator.

(2) The Operator shall have available for rental, either owned or under
written lease to Operator, not less than two (2) certificated and currently airworthy
aircraft, at least one (1) of which must be a four-place aircraft, and at least one (1) of
which must be equipped for and capable of flight under instrument conditions.



64.06

3) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified:

A. Aircraft Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily
injury and property damage including passengers with a $100,000 sub-limit per
passenger.

B. Airport Liability: ~ $3,;000,0001,000,000 single limit, premises;

$1,000 single limit.

(4) The Operator shall have his premises open and services available eight
(8) hours daily, six (6) days a week.

(5) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during the
appropriate business hours, trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet
the minimum standards in an efficient manner, but never less than one (1) person having
a current commercial pilot certificate with appropriate ratings, including instructor rating.
The Operator shall make provision for someone to be available to provide servicesin
attendance-in-the-office at all times during the required operating hours.

FLIGHT TRAINING.

(a) Statement of Concept. A "Flight Training Operator" is a person or persons, firm,

or corporation engaged in instructing pilots in dual and solo flight training, in fixed or rotary wing
aircraft, and provides such related ground school instruction as is necessary preparatory to taking
a written examination and flight check ride for the category or categories of pilots' licenses and
ratings involved.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) For new construction, Fhe-the Operator shall lease from Sheboygan
County an area of not less than 15,000 square feet of ground space and on which shall
be erected a building to provide at least 2,500 square feet of floor space for aircraft
storage and at least 1,000 square feet of floor space for office, classroom, briefing room,
pilot lounge, and rest rooms which shall be properly heated and lighted. and-shall-previde

iliti -The Transportation Committee may approve the use
of existing facilities with less floor space if it finds it in the best interest of Airport
operations.

The Operator shall provide aute—parking spaces within the leased area to
accommodate at least ten (10) automobiles.

The Operator shall provide a paved walkway within the leased area to
accommodate pedestrian access to the Operator’s office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator's building to the taxiway or the
access to the taxiway that has been or will be provided for the Operator.

2) The Operator shall have available for use in flight training, either owned
or under written lease to Operator, not less than two (2) properly certificated aircraft, at
least one (1) of which must be a four-place aircraft, and at least one (1) of which must be
equipped for and capable of use in instrument flight instruction.

3) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified:

Al Aircraft Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily

injury and property damage including passengers with a $100,000 sub-limit per
passenger.

[Commented [DB1]: Why not other insurance? ]




(4) The Operator shall have Operator's premises open and services
available eight (8) hours daily, six (6) days a week.

(5) The Operator shall have on a full-time basis at least one (1) flight
instructor who has been properly certificated by the Federal Aviation Administration to
provide the type of training offered.

The Operator shall have available for call on a part-time basis at least one (1)
flight instructor who has been properly certificated by the Federal Aviation Administration
to provide the type of training offered.

The Operator shall make provisions for someone to be available to provide
services in-attendance-in-the-office-at all times during the required operating hours.

64.07 AIRCRAFT FUELS AND OIL DISPENSING SERVICE.

(a) Statement of Concept. Line services shall include the sale and into-plane
delivery of recognized brands of aviation fuels, lubricants, and other related aviation petroleum
products. The Operator shall provide servicing of aircraft, including ramp assistance and the
parking, storage, and tie-down of aircraft within the leased area.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) For new construction, Fthe Operator shall lease from Sheboygan County
an area of not less than 15,000 square feet of ground space on which shall be erected a
building to provide at least 2,500 square feet of floor space for aircraft storage and at
least 1,000 square feet of floor space for office, customer lounge, and rest rooms, which
shall be properly heated and lighted;. and-shall-provide-telephone-facilitiesfor-customer
use-The Transportation Committee may approve the use of existing facilities with less
floor space if it finds it in the best interest of Airport operations.

The Operator shall provide aute—parking spaces within the leased area to
accommodate at least ten (10) automobiles.

The Operator shall provide a paved walkway within the leased area to
accommodate pedestrian access to the Operator’s office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator’'s building to the taxiway or the
access to the taxiway that has been or will be provided for the Operator.

2) The Operator shall provide at least two (2) 12,000-gallon fuel storage
tanks at the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport and maintain an adequate
supply of fuel on hand at all times of at least two (2) grades of fuel as closely related as
possible to the popular demand of the general aviation users of the Airport. The Operator
shall provide at least two (2) metered filter-equipped dispensers, fixed or mobile, for
dispensing the minimum requirement of two (2) grades of fuel. Separate dispensing
pumps and meters are required for each grade of fuel.

The Operator shall provide such minor repair service that does not require a
certificated mechanical rating and cabin services to general aviation aircraft as can be
performed efficiently on the ramp or apron parking area, but only within the premises
leased to the Operator.

The Operator shall make provision for the transportation of pilots and passengers
of transient general aviation aircraft using the Operator’s facilities and services from and
to the Operator's office and the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport
terminal area.

The Operator shall procure and maintain tools, jacks, towing equipment, tire
repairing equipment, energizers, and starters, heaters, fire extinguishers, and-passenger
leading-steps-as appropriate and necessary for the servicing of general aviation aircraft



64.08

using the Airport. All Eequipment shall be maintained and operated in accordance with
local and state industrial codes.

3) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified:

A. Hangar Keepers Liability and/or Products Liability: A sum
sufficient to adequately cover the maximum liability exposure based on the
intended use of the premises or value of the equipment to be serviced.

B. Airport Liability: $3,000,000 single limit, premises; plus
$1,000,000 single limit, products/completed operations no sub-limit.

C. Motor Vehicle Liability: $1,000,000 single limit.

D. Pollution Liability Insurance covering its liability for bodily injury,

property damage, and environmental damage resulting from sudden and
accidental releases of pollution and coverage related to resultant clean-up and/or
remediation costs arising out of the occupancy and use of the premises.
Combined single limit bodily injury, property damage, environmental liability, and
clean-up/remediation shall not be less than $500,000 in the annual aggregate.

(4) The Operator shall have Operator's premises open for aircraft fueling
and oil dispensing service 8:00 a.m. to sundown seven (7) days a week. The Operator
shall make provision for such service during other hours on a call basis.

5) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during the
appropriate business hours, trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet
the minimum standards set forth in this category of services in an efficient manner.

(6) The Operator shall make provisions for someone to be available to
provide services in-attendance-in-theoffice-at all times during the required operating
hours.

RADIO, INSTRUMENT, OR PROPELLER REPAIR STATION.

(a) Statement of Concept. A "Radio, Instrument, or Propeller Repair Station

Operator" is a person or persons, firm, or corporation engaged in the business of and providing a
shop for the repair of aircraft radios, propellers, instruments, and accessories for general aviation

aircraft.

This category shall include the sale of new or used aircraft radios, propellers,

instruments, and accessories but such is not an exclusive right. The Operator shall hold the
appropriate repair shop certificates issued by the Federal Aviation Association.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) For new construction, Fthe Operator shall lease from Sheboygan County
an area of not less than 15,000 square feet of ground space on which shall be erected a
building to provide at least 2,500 square feet of floor space to hangar at least one (1)
aircraft, to house all equipment, and to provide an office, shop, customer lounge, and rest
rooms, all properly heated and lighted:. j i
use._The Transportation Committee may approve the use of existing facilities with less
floor space if it finds it in the best interest of Airport operations.

The Operator shall provide aute-parking spaces within the leased area and shall
provide a paved walkway within the leased area to accommodate pedestrian access to
the Operator’s office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator’'s building to the taxiway or the
access to the taxiway that has been or will be provided for the Operator.



64.09

(2) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified:

A. Airport  Liability: $3,000,000 single limit, premises; plus
$1,000,000 single limit, products/completed operations no sub-limit.

B. Hangar Keepers Liability and/or Products Liability: A sum
sufficient to adequately cover the maximum liability exposure based on the
intended use of the premises or value of the equipment to be serviced.

3) The Operator shall have Operator's premises open and services
available eight (8) hours daily, five (5) days each week, and one-half (1/2) day on
Saturday.

(4) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during the
appropriate business hours trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet
the minimum standards set forth in this category in an efficient manner but never less
than one (1) person who is a Federal Aviation Administration rated radio, instrument, or
propeller repairman and one (1) other repairman who need not be rated by the Federal
Aviation Administration.

AIRCRAFT CHARTER AND AIR TAXI.

(a) Statement of Concept. An "Aircraft Charter" and an "Air Taxi Operator" is a

person or persons, firm, or corporation engaged in the business of providing non-scheduled air
transportation (person or property) to the general public for hire including non-stop sightseeing
flights within a twenty-five- (25-) mile radius of the Airport as distinct from scheduled services as a
common carrier.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) For new construction, Tthe Operator shall lease from Sheboygan County
an area of not less than 15,000 square feet of ground space on which shall be erected a
building to provide at least 2,500 square feet of floor space for aircraft storage and at
least 1,000 square feet of floor space for office, customer lounge, and rest rooms, which
shall be properly heated and lighted. i iliti
use:_The Transportation Committee may approve the use of existing facilities with less
floor space if it finds it in the best interest of Airport operations.

The Operator shall provide aute—parking spaces within the leased area to
accommodate at least ten (10) automobiles.

The Operator shall provide a paved walkway within the leased area to
accommodate pedestrian access to the Operator's office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator's building to the taxiway or the
access to the taxiway that has been or will be provided for the Operator.

(2) The Operator shall provide at least one (1) of the following types of
aircraft either owned or under written lease to Operator: Not less than one (1)
single-engine four-place aircraft and/or one (1) multi-engine aircraft, both of which must
meet the requirements of the air taxi commercial operator certificate held by the
Operator, including instrument operations.

3) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified:

A. Piston-powered Aircraft — Aircraft Liability: $1,000,000 combined
single limit, including passengers, minimum.

Airport Liability: $3,000,000 single limit.



B. Turbine- and Jet-powered Aircraft — Aircraft Liability: $3,000,000
single limit, including passengers.

Airport Liability: $3,000,000 single limit, with product/completed
operations, no sub-limit.

(4) The Operator shall have Operator's premises open and services
available eight (8) hours daily, six (6) days per week. The Operator shall provide on-call
service during hours other than the aforementioned.

(5) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during the
appropriate business hours, trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet
the minimum standards set forth in this category in an efficient manner but never less
than at least one (1) Federal Aviation Administration certificated commercial pilot and
otherwise appropriately rated to permit the flight activity offered by Operator.

The Operator shall make provision for someone to be available to provide
services in-attendance-in-the-office-at all times during the required operating hours.

64.10 AIR CARRIERS OR SCHEDULED AIR TAXI.

(a) Statement of Concept. An air carrier or scheduled air taxi operation is a person
or persons, firm, or corporation engaged in air transportation of passengers and/or cargo between
the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport and fixed origination and/or destination
points on a scheduled basis (whether said schedule is published or not) for consideration and
available to the general public.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) The Operator shall lease from Sheboygan County terminal space, if said
space is available, or if not available, from a lessee of Sheboygan County, with
Sheboygan County's consent;; the Operator shall lease adequate terminal space to
sufficiently meet the needs of the general public it will serve or of the services it will
perform but in no event less than a minimum of four hundred (400) square feet. Such
minimum space may be provided on a combined use basis with another Operator. |n the
event a sub-lease arrangement is necessary, Sheboygan County will lend its assistance
to the Operator in negotiating for said sublease for terminal space and will use its best
efforts to secure adequate space for terminal use purposes or arrange some alternative
method cl)f providing for Operator's needs and the passengers and cargo involved in said
services.

(2) The Operator shall furnish and equip the above referred to terminal
space in an adequate manner.

3) The Operator shall own or have on lease for not less than a period of
twelve (12) months sufficient aircraft, but in any event not less than two (2), with
passenger and/or cargo capacity to adequately serve the proposed routes and schedules
of the Operator.

(4) The Operator shall require that all aircraft used for passenger service
having a passenger seating capacity of eight or more shall be operated with a crew of at
least two (2) pilots; and all aircraft operated for passenger service having a maximum
passenger seating capacity of seven (7) or less may be operated by a crew with one pilot
if said aircraft shall have an automatic pilot, as may be required by the Federal Aviation
Association-Administration for the service intended and all aircraft used for cargo only
shall meet the minimum standards as may be required by the Federal Aviation
Asseeciation-Administration for the services being performed.

In all cases, captains shall be qualified for single pilot operation and all pilots and
co-pilots must hold-I.F-R—ratings_an instrument airplane rating under 14 C.F.R.§ 61.65(d).

[Commented [DB2]: 2




During the time said service is being provided, the Operator shall maintain a
training program for all captains, supervised by a Director of Training, and shall require
six- (6-) months' proficiency checks administered by a check pilot who is duly qualified
and authorized to provide said checks by the Federal Aviation-Asseciation Administration.
The results of said checks shall be kept on record and be available for inspection by
Sheboygan County.

(5) The Operator shall maintain at the Sheboygan County Memorial
International Airport adequate hangaring for at least one (1) of its aircraft used for said
service.

(6) The Operator shall provide adequate facilities and personnel for the
maintenance of all aircraft used in its scheduled operations to or from the Sheboygan
County Memorial International Airport or contract for such maintenance with ar Federal
Aviation AssociationAdministration-approved repair station, excepting for emergency
repairs or maintenance, in which event Federal Aviation
AssociationAdministration-licensed airframe and power plant mechanics or such
competent personnel as may be available may be used in said emergency to perform
said work.

(7) In connection with providing said service, the Operator shall:

- A. pProvide at other terminals on all flights serving Sheboygan
County Memorial International Airport, adequate facilities and conveniences for

Shebeygan-passengers; and

- B. mMaintain on-duty at-Shebeygan_the airport, at least one (1)
person employed for the purpose of servicing airline customers at least eight (8)
hours per day every weekday and on Saturday, Sunday, and holidays such
personnel as may be required based on the service provided; and

- C. aAt all points served on flights to or from Sheboygan-the airport
maintain sufficient personnel for servicing the airline customers; and

- D. eConduct operations in accordance with an operation manual
approved by the Federal Aviation Administration; and

- E. pProvide a minimum of three (3) round trips per weekday and
such flights as may be required for the service provided on Saturday, Sunday,
and holidays between Shebeygan-the airport and a specific terminal point and
which schedule must be maintained except for mechanical or weather delays.
The minimum daily flights shall not apply to service involving cargo only, and in
said service a minimum of two (2) flights per day shall be required; and

- E. tThe Operator shall carry and keep in force public liability
insurance covering personal injury and property damage and such other
insurance as may be necessary to protect Sheboygan County from such claims
and accidents; and without limiting its liability the Operating-Operation shall keep
in force such insurance with limits of liability for personal injury in the sum of not
less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) single limit per incident and the
Operator shall furnish the County with present certification that such insurance is
in force and it shall keep such certification current.

(8) The Operator shall have a net worth as may be established by
competent evidence that Operator has the financial ability to operate for a period of one
(1) year on the routes, rates, and schedules proposed.




64.11 SPECIALIZED COMMERCIAL FLYING SERVICES.

(a) Statement of Concept. A "Specialized Commercial Flying Services Operator" is
a person or persons, firm, or corporation engaged in air transportation for hire for the purpose of
providing the use of aircraft for the activities listed below:

(1) Crop-dusting, seeding, spraying, chemical coverages, and bird-chasing;
2) Banner-towing and aerial-advertising;

3) Aerial photography or survey;

(4) Fire fighting;

(5) Power line or pipe line patrol;

(6) Any other operations specifically excluded from Part 135 of the Federal
Aviation Regulations.

(b) Minimum Standards.

(1) The Operator shall lease land from the County and erect a building
sufficient to accommodate all activities and operations proposed by the Operator. The
minimum areas in each instance shall be subject to the approval of the Countyof
Sheboygan_County Transportation Committee. In the case of crop dusting or aerial
application, the Operator shall make suitable arrangements and have such space
available in his leased area for safe loading and unloading and storage and containment
of noxious chemical materials. All Operators shall demonstrate that they have the
availability of aircraft suitably equipped for the particular type of operation they intend to
perform.

2) The Operator shall provide and have based on Operator's leasehold,
either owned, or under written lease to Operator, not less than one (1) aircraft which will
be airworthy, meeting all the requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration and
applicable regulations of the State of Wisconsin with respect to the type of operations to
be performed.

In the case of crop dusting or aerial application, Operator shall provide tank
trucks for the handling of liquid spray and mixing liquids. Operator shall also provide
adequate ground equipment for the safe handling and safe loading of dusting materials.

3) The Operator performing the services under this category will be
required to carry the following types of insurance in the limits specified:

A. Aircraft Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit, including
passengers, minimum.

B. Airport Liability: $3,000,000 single limit, premises; $1,000,000
single limit.

C. Hangar Keepers and/or Products Liability: A sum sufficient to
adequately cover the maximum liability exposure based on the intended use of
the premises or value of the equipment to be serviced.



64.12

D. Where applicable, Tenant shall maintain pollution liability
insurance covering its liability for bodily injury, property damage, and
environmental damage resulting from sudden and accidental releases of pollution
and covering related or resultant clean-up and/or remediation costs arising out of
the occupancy and use of the premises. Combined single limit bodily injury,
property damage, environmental liability, and clean-up/remediation shall not be
less than $500,000 in the annual aggregate.

(4) The Operator must provide by means of an office or a telephone, a point
of contact for the public desiring to utilize Operator’s services.

(5) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during
appropriate business hours, trained personnel in such numbers as may be required to
meet the minimum standards herein set forth in an efficient manner, but never less than
one (1) person holding a current Federal Aviation Administration commercial certificate,
properly rated for the aircraft to be used and the type of operation to be performed and
one (1) other person to assist in the loading and servicing of aircraft.

MULTIPLE SERVICES.

(a) Statement of Concept. A "Multiple Services Operator" shall be one who engages

in any two (2) or more of the aeronautical services for which minimum standards have been
hereinbefore provided.

(b) Minimum Standards (combinations not including fuels and oil dispensing

service).

(1) For new construction, Tthe Operator shall lease from Sheboygan County
an area not less than 33,000 square feet of ground space (23,000 for repair shop only
combinations) for aircraft storage, parking, and other use in accordance with the services
to be offered and on which shall be erected a building to provide at least 6,500 square
feet (6,000 square feet for repair shop only combinations) for aircraft storage and at least
1,500 square feet (1,000 square feet for repair shop only combinations) of floor space for
office customer lounge, rest room, parts storage, and small machines, which shall be
properly heated and lighted. and-shall-provide-telephone-facilitiesfor-eustomer-use- The
Transportation Committee may approve the use of existing facilities with less floor space
if it finds it in the best interest of Airport operations.

If flight training is one of the multiple services offered, the Operator shall provide
classroom and briefing room facilities in the aforementioned building.

If crop-dusting, aerial application, or other commercial use of chemicals are part
of the multiple services offered, the Operator shall provide a centrally drained, paged
area of not less than 2,500 square feet for aircraft loading, washing, and servicing.
Operator shall also provide for the safe storage and containment of noxious chemical
matters. Such facilities will be in a location on the Sheboygan County Memorial
International Airport which will provide the greatest safeguard to the public.

The Operator shall provide auto—parking spaces within the leased area to
accommodate at least fifteen (15) automobiles.

The Operator shall provide a paved walkway within the leased area to
accommodate pedestrian access to the Operator’s office.

The Operator shall provide a paved aircraft apron within the leased area to
accommodate aircraft movement from the Operator's taxiway that has been or will be
provided for the Operator.

(2) The Operator shall comply with the aircraft requirements including the
equipment thereon for each aeronautical service to be performed except as hereinafter
provided.

Commented [DB3]: What does this mean?
Should it be paved?




64.13

Multiple uses can be made of all aircraft except aircraft used for crop-dusting,
aerial application or other commercial use of chemicals.

The Operator, except if the Operator is performing combinations of multiple
services for which aircraft are not required, shall have available and based at the
Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport, either owned by Operator or under
written lease to Operator, not less than two (2) certified and currently airworthy aircraft.
These aircraft shall be equipped and capable of flight to meet the minimum standards as
hereinbefore provided for each aeronautical service to be performed.

The Operator shall provide the equipment and services required to meet the
minimum standards as hereinbefore provided for each aeronautical service the Operator
is performing.

3) The Operator shall obtain, as a minimum, that insurance coverage which
is equal to the highest individual insurance requirement of all the aeronautical services
being performed by Operator.

(4) The Operator shall adhere to the hours of operation required for each
aeronautical service being performed.

(5) The Operator shall have in Operator's employ and on duty during the
appropriate business hours trained personnel in such numbers as are required to meet
the minimum standards for each aeronautical services Operator is performing as
hereinabove provided. Multiple responsibilities may be assigned to meet the personnel
requirements for each aeronautical service being performed by the Operator, except such
multiple responsibilities may not be assigned to the Federal Aviation Administration
certificated repair stations.

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS.
(a) Buildings.

(1) The minimum space requirements as hereinbefore provided shall be
satisfied with one (1) building, attached buildings, or separate buildings.

(2) The hangar buildings hereafter constructed shall have at least one (1)
door with the following minimum dimensions:

Floor Space of Door Width Door Height
Hangar Building Clear Area Clear Area
Under 2400 sq. feet 40 feet 12 feet
2400-4000 sq. feet 58 feet 12 feet
Over 4000 sq. feet 58 feet 15 feet
(b) All personnel hereinbefore required to hold Federal Aviation Administration

certificates and ratings shall maintain such certificates and ratings.

64.14

LEASE CLAUSES.

(a) Premises to be Operated for Use and Benefit of Public. Lessee agrees to

operate the premises leased for the use and benefit of the public.

(1) To furnish good, prompt, and efficient service adequate to meet all the
demands for its service at the Airport.

(2) To furnish said service on a fair, equal, and non-discriminatory basis to
all users thereof.

3) To charge fair, reasonable, and non-discriminatory prices for each unit of
sale or service provided that the lessee may be allowed to make reasonable and



non-discriminatory discounts, rebates, or other similar types of price reductions to volume
purchasers.

(b) Non-Discrimination Clause. The lessee and lessee's agents and employees will
not discriminate against any person or class of persons by reason of race, religion, creed, color,
national origin, physical disability, sex;-age, marital status, ancestry, arrest or conviction record,
membership in the military, or sexual orientation in providing any services or in the use of any of
its facilities provided for the public in any manner prohibited by Part 15 of the Federal Aviation
Regulations.

The lessee further agrees to comply with such enforcement procedures as the
United States might demand that the lessor take in order to comply with the Sponsor's
Assurances.

(c) Aircraft Service by Owner or Operator of Aircraft. It is clearly understood by the
lessee that no right or privilege has been granted which would operate to prevent any person,
firm, or corporation operating aircraft on the Airport from performing any services on its own
aircraft with its own regular employees (including, but not limited to, maintenance and repair that
it may choose to perform).

(d) Non-Exclusive Rights Clause. It is understood and agreed that nothing herein
contained shall be construed to grant or authorize the granting of an exclusive right.

(e) Development of Sheboygan County Memorial_International Airport Clause.
Lessor reserves the right to further develop or improve the landing area of the Airport as it sees
fit, regardless of the desires or view of the lessee and without interference or hindrance. If the
physical development of the Airport requires the relocation of the lessee, the lessor agrees to
provide a comparable location and agrees to relocate all buildings or provide similar facilities for
the lessee at no cost to the lessee.

(f) Lessor's Right Clause. Lessor reserves the right, but shall not be obligated to
Lessee to maintain and keep in repair, the landing area of the Airport and all publicly owned
facilities of the Airport, together with the right to direct and control all activities of lessee in this
regard.

(9) War or National Emergency. During the time of war or national emergency,
lessor shall have the right to lease the landing area or any part thereof to the United States
Ggovernment if so requested by-it-for military or naval use, and if such lease is executed, the
provisions of this instrument insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of the lease to the
government shall be suspended.

(h) Obstructions at Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport. Lessor
reserves the right to take any action it considers necessary to protect the aerial approaches of the
Airport against obstruction together with the right to prevent lessee from erecting or permitting to
be erected any building or other structure on the Airport which, in the opinion of the lessor, would
limit the usefulness of the Airport or constitute a hazard to aircraft.

(i) Subordination Clause. This lease shall be subordinate to the provisions of any
existing or future agreement between lessor and the United States relative to the operation or
maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a condition
precedent to the expenditure of federal funds for the development of the Airport.

@) General Lease Provisions.
(1) All leases between Sheboygan County and an operator covering the
performance by an operation of any aeronautical service as hereinbefore provided shall

be in writing.

(2) Lessee shall provide a performance bond insuring the completion of the
building to be erected on the leasehold.



3) Lessee shall furnish such evidence as may be reasonably requested by
Sheboygan County to show the Lessee is financially capable of providing the services
and facilities set forth in the lease.

(4) In the event a business is desired to be conducted from the leased
hangar area and the business might not otherwise meet the size requirements outlined in
this Chapter or elsewhere in this Code, the Airport ManagerSuperintendent, in
conjunction with the Airport Advisory Committee shall nevertheless review for approval a
request for a hangar lease within the hangar area. When both feel the business can be
conducted in a manner acceptable to the proper operations of Airport business, a
recommendation will be presented to the Transportation Committee for its approval and
action subject to applicable zoning and land use regulations.

64.15 LEASE PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS. Sheboygan County will not accept a request to
lease land area at the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport unless the request is a written
proposal which sets forth the scope of operation to be performed and shall include the following:

(a) The services to be offered.

(b) The amount of land to be leased.

(c) The building space to be constructed or leased.

(d) The number of aircraft to be provided.

(e) The number of persons to be employed.

f) The hours of proposed operation.

(9) The number and types of insurance coverage to be maintained.
il (h) Evidence of financial capability to perform and provide the proposed services and
acilities.

(i) Where applicable, the following:

- 1.  Names and addresses of owners of more than ten percent (10%) of
applicant-if corporate-structure-is-involved any corporate lessee.
- 2. Name and address of person responsible for service at Sheboygan

County Memorial International Airport.

- 3. Names and addresses of corporate officers.
- 4. Routes and schedules proposed to be flown to or from Sheboygan

County Memorial International Airport.

- 5. Copy of operating authority issued by the Federal Government and the
operating authority, if any, issued by the State of Wisconsin.

- 6. Current balance sheet and profit and loss statement (upon request by
applicant, information concerning finances, routes, schedules, and rates will be
treated confidentially and will under no circumstances be released or made
available to anyone other than the appropriate County Board Committee and
Corporation Counsel).

64.16 FLYING CLUBS. The following requirements pertain to all flying clubs desiring to base
their aircraft at the Airport and be exempt from the minimum standards.

(a) Flying Club Organizations. Each Cclub must be a non-profit Wisconsin
corporation or partnership. Each member must be a bona fide owner of the aircraft or a
stockholder in the corporation. The Gclub may not derive greater revenue from the use of its
aircraft than the amount necessary for the actual use of operation, maintenance, and replacement



of its aircraft. The Cclub will file and keep current with the Airport owner a complete list of the
Cclub's membership and investment share held by each member.

(b) Aircraft. The Cclub's aircraft will not be used by other than bona fide members
for rental and by no one for hire, charter, or air taxi. Student instruction can be given by a lessee
based at the Airport who provides flight training.

(c) Violations. In the event the Cclub fails to comply with these conditions, the
Airport owner will notify the Cclub in writing of such violations. If the Cclub fails to correct the
violation in fifteen (15) days, the Airport owner may take any action deemed advisable by the
owner.

(d) Insurance. Each aircraft owned by the Cclub must have aircraft liability
insurance coverage for the following amounts:

(1) Aircraft  Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit, including
passengers, minimum.

(2) Airport Liability: $3,000,000 single limit, premises; $1,000,000 single
limit.

64.17 GENERAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. All insurance requirements under this
Chapter are to be considered minimums. All persons required to provide insurance under this Chapter
shall furnish such proof of insurance in such form as the Transportation Committee deems appropriate.

History:



CHAPTER 65
AIRPORT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

65.01 CREATION OF COMMITTEE

65.02 COMMITTEE PURPOSE

65.03 MEMBERSHIP

65.04 APPOINTMENTS TO THE COMMITTEE
65.05 DUTIES

65.01 CREATION OF COMMITTEE. There is hereby created a committee to be known as the
Airport Advisory Committee.

65.02 COMMITTEE PURPOSE. The purpose of the Committee is to serve as a resource to

provide public input with regard to the Sheboygan County Memorial International Airport "operational
matters," which term shall be construed in its broadest manner.

65.03 MEMBERSHIP. The Committee shall consist of ten (10) members which members shall
represent the following:

(a) Two (2) members from the County Board Transportation Committee;

(b) One (1) member from the Town Board of the Town of Sheboygan Falls_or such
other designee as appointed by the Town Board;

(c) One (1) member representing the corporate business community who owns a
hangar at the Airport;

(d) One (1) member representing the private hangar owners;

(e) One (1) member who is an aircraft owner who rents hangar or tie-down space at
the Airport;

() One (1) member who represents the Sheboygan Area Chamber of Commerce;

(9) One (1) member representing the Fixed Base Operator;

(h) One (1) member representing the largest private user of Airport services as

determined by the Airport Superintendent; and
(i) One (1) member representing the operator of the Aviation Heritage Center.

In addition to the above, a representative from the Airport Department-Division shall serve on the
Committee as a resource person but shall not have any voting rights.

65.04 APPOINTMENTS TO THE COMMITTEE. Appointments to the Committee shall be made
by the County Board Chairperson as to Transportation Committee members and the County Administrator
as to public members from a list of names submitted by the County Board Committee responsible for
operation of the airport and subject to confirmation by the County Board. The initial appointments shall
be made so that one-half of the members shall serve a one-year term and one-half shall serve a two-year
term. Thereafter, each member shall serve a two-year term unless a vacancy is created, and, in such
event, appointments to fill the vacancy shall be for the remainder of the term being filled.

65.05 DUTIES. The Committee shall meet periodically to obtain public input as to Airport
procedures and operational matters. The Committee shall also advise the Transportation Committee and
make recommendations with regard to the maintenance and operation of the Airport. So that its
members may not have any personal liability, the Committee shall have no authority other than to consult,
advise, and recommend as to the above matters.

History: Ord. 1 (2014/15); Ord. 17 (2015/16); Ord. 10 (2017/18); Ord. 9 (2019/20);



O 00~ N W —

NN hnhnhundbh BB BADMDPADREDRARAERDNWWWLWWLWWWWWIRNRNDNDINDNDNDNODNDNODND /= === ——
AN UNPAWRWNNRFOOVOOITANPAWNNFRFOOVONTATAUNMPAEAWN—RLOOENTAAUNPAEAWNN—LOOVOYIANWUNKAWND—O

W
[oelN]

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. (2023/24)

Re: Establishing Speed Zone on: County Road "lI" (Town of Sherman)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 349.11, in the interest of safety, the Transportation Committee
recommends that to maintain a reasonable and safe speed zone, the present speed zone on a portion of certain
County Roads be amended and/or created as hereinafter specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, the County Board of Supervisors of the County of Sheboygan does ordain as follows:
Section 1. Changing Speed Zone. The provisions of Section 20.03 of the County Code of
Ordinances are hereby amended to read as follows (shading indicates additions, strikeouts indicate

deletions; only those portions affected appear):

(12) TOWN OF SHERMAN

(a) County Road "I" — Forty-five miles per hour from its intersection with State
Highway 57, westerly to the corporate limits of the Village of Adell, a distance of .019 miles.

(b) County Road "D" — Forty-five miles per hour from State Highway 57 easterly to
the intersection with County Road "CC."

(c) County Road “II” — Forty-five miles per hour from a point 900’ west of Random
Lake Road to County Road “I".

Section 2. Effective Date. The herein Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption by the
County Board, approval of the Department of Transportation if required, publication of this Ordinance, and
installation of appropriate signage.

Respectfully submitted this 19th day of March, 2024.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

Thomas Wegner, Chairperson Roger Te Stroete, Vice-Chairperson
Al Bosman, Secretary Jacqueline Veldman
Jon Kuhlow

Opposed to Introduction:

Countersigned by:

Vernon C. Koch, Chairperson
(See attached for location maps.)

R:A\CLIENT\08299\00014\00227302.DOCX February 26, 2024, draft



5,902 8429 2241

596745477

G.ON767A5d569 \\

5902 8428 9510

| - 5 -
| 500 284209272 TR
sl

1 % .

- — o || m=County/Road!ll 1stiSt] - --L

59028428960 ,_ yi

|

4\ 00 PRAPS3116
59028429261
r
5502 BAZS 260

59028429320

50028430004
59028430005

GIS Web Map

N y
occur between equivalent legal records, the di is 'main until such time as it
Date Printed: 2/23/2024 is addressed. Sheboygan County distributes this data on an 'as is' basis; no warranties are implied.




O 00~ N W —

Lo hnunummnuandbh A DDBADRADPDLEDRADAEDRDWOLWWLWWWLWLWLWLWWWINRINDNINDNDNDNODNDNDODND /= === —
O NHEWNODFRFOOVIAANNDEAWNNRLROOVOIIAANNPE WD, OO NRAEWND—,LOOXXINNDE WD —O

A W
[e>iNe)

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. (2023/24)

Re: Establishing Speed Zone on: County Road "J" (Town of Rhine)

WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 349.11, in the interest of safety, the Transportation Committee
recommends that to maintain a reasonable and safe speed zone, the present speed zone on a portion of certain County
Road “J” be amended as hereinafter specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, the County Board of Supervisors of the County of Sheboygan does ordain as follows:
Section 1. Changing Speed Zone. The provisions of Section 20.03 of the County Code of
Ordinances are hereby amended to read as follows (shading indicates additions, strikeouts indicate deletions;

only those portions affected appear):

20.03 (7) TOWN OF RHINE

(e) County Road “J”

1. Twenty-five miles per hour from its intersection with County Road "C"
northwesterly to a point 0.25 of a mile northeast of its intersection with
County Road "CJ."

2. Forty-five miles per hour for all vehicles from the Elkhart Lake Village
limits, northerly to its intersection with County Road "MM" for a
distance of 1.9 miles.

3. Fhirty-five Twenty-five miles per hour from a point 0.25 of a mile
northeast northwest of its intersection with County Road "CJ" northerly to its
intersection with County Road "A" (also known as the intersection of Royal
and Ancient Drive).

Section 2. Effective Date. The herein Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption by the County
Board, approval of the Department of Transportation if required, publication of this Ordinance, and installation
of appropriate signage.
Respectfully submitted this 19th day of March, 2024.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

Thomas Wegner, Chairperson Roger Te Stroete, Vice-Chairperson
Al Bosman, Secretary Jacqueline Veldman
Jon Kuhlow

Opposed to Introduction:

Countersigned by:

Vernon C. Koch, Chairperson
(See attached for location maps.)

R:\CLIENT\08299\00014\00227302.DOCX March 8, 2024, draft



EENEEEE R T

. e T 1T F'r"‘—
o

rll = 2901B2579,70
\_‘__'- 1-_._{

5.85B 0

5.00,18258;15.0]

:
L

yiRoadfA
8267318

1

L A 3 :
PS5 01 72415:85 50°2
J ; - kg e,

501121 5855011
leHDrth

N 50 0182591120

TS

Count
"is'g'n‘

5908259080 <

500,182 58 8241

150 0118264 520

59018267600

Date Printed: 2/28/2024




	1. 2024 March Agenda
	2. 2024-02-05 Transportation Committee MINUTES
	3.12.24 Committee Report FBO
	4. Res-Purchase of Kohler Co. Commercial Hangar and Ramp Parcels (00228043xB94F0)
	5. Ord - Amending Chapters 61-65 (00220638xB94F0) (1)
	5a. 61 - Sheboygan County Memorial Airport-Redlined (00220578xB94F0)
	5a. 62 - Airport Vehicular Traffic Regulations-redlined (00220552xB94F0)
	5c. 63 - Regulating Height of Structures-Trees at Airport-Redlined (00220618xB94F0)
	5d. 64 - Minimum Standard-Airport Services-Redlined (00220628xB94F0) (1)
	5e. 65 - Airport Advisory Committee-Redlined (00220558xB94F0) (1)
	6. Ord - Speed Zone on II (Sherman) (00227302xB94F0)
	Ord - Speed Zone on II (Sherman) (00227302xB94F0)
	Speed study map II

	7. Ord - Speed Zone on J (Town of Rhine) (00227419xB94F0)
	Ord - Speed Zone on J (Town of Rhine) (00227419xB94F0)
	Speed Study Map CJ

	8. 2024 Wisconsin County Highway Association - WCHA Pesticide Applicator Training - Waupaca

